

# **UAUC U.G. – 2025-26**

Uttarakhand Ayurved University Centralized Counseling



UTTARAKHAND
AYURVED
UNIVERSITY
DEHRADUN

# UAUC U.G. –2025-26 Uttarakhand Ayurved University Centralized Counseling

(For admission to the Academic Session 2025-26)

B.A.M.S., B.H.M.S., B.U.M.S. & B.N.Y.S. Courses in University Campus Colleges and Private Colleges Affiliated to Uttarakhand Ayurved University (UAU), Dehradun



To be conducted by:

# Uttarakhand Ayurved University,

Harrawala, Dehradun - 248005
Technical Assistance- 7016125562
University Helpline- 7456850078
University Email- uaucounselling@gmail.com
Technical Email- support@studentink.zohodesk.in
Website -www.uau.ac.in

## <u>Dates for UAUC U.G. – 2025-26 Uttarakhand Ayurved</u> <u>University Centralized Counseling</u>

R	<u>le</u>	g	S	<u>tr</u>	a	<u>ti</u>	0	n

- Only registered candidates will be allowed to participate in various round of counseling.
- For Registration Fees, see the point no. 05 of the information brochure.

## Ist Round of Online Counseling

Online Registration, Fee submission with choice filling, and final	
printout for I <sup>st</sup> Round of Counseling	16.09.2025 to 23.09.2025
	26.09.2025
Display of Merit List	
Declaration of result	30.09-2025
Last date of joining the allotted college	01.10.2025 to 06.10.2025

# II<sup>nd</sup> Round of Online Counseling

Online Registration Fee Submission with cho	ice filling,	
and final print out for II <sup>nd</sup> Round of		
Counseling		
Display of Merit List on website		
Declaration of result		
Last date of joining the allotted college		

# III<sup>rd</sup> / MOP UP Round (dates will be declared separately)

Online Registration & Fresh Registration and Fee Submission
Display of Merit
Physical Reporting in Uttarakhand Ayurved University and allotment of seats by Counseling Board.
Last date of joining the allotted college

#### Note.

- 1. UAUC-UG-2025-26 Counseling Board reserves the rights to modify the above counseling schedule.
- 2. Admission process will be done only on working days.

## **Contents**

1.INTRODUCTION:	5
2. GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS:	5
3. ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA FOR UAUC-UG-2025-26 UTTARAKHAND AYURVED UNIVERSITY CENTRALISED COUNSELING	7
4. RESERVATION POLICIES	9
5.COUNSELLING REGISTRATION FEE	12
6.DETAIL OF SEATS:	12
7. COUNSELLING PROCEDURE	13
8. ADMISSION PROCEDURE	16
9. FEE & FEE REFUND POLICY	17
10. JURISDICTION	17
11. DISCLAIMER	18
ANNEXURE – 1	19

- Candidates are advised to regularly refer the University's website <a href="www.uau.ac.in">www.uau.ac.in</a> for any updates regarding UAUC U.G.-2025-26.
- No separate information will be sent to the candidates.

#### 1.INTRODUCTION:

- 1.1 Uttarakhand Ayurved University is the first AYUSH University in Uttarakhand. There are Seven Faculties to be established in the University. These faculties are Ayurveda, Homeopathy, Unani, Siddha, Yoga and Naturopathy, Bio medical Sciences, & Pharmaceutical Sciences. The main objective is to promote the application of basic sciences in the field of AYUSH and evidence-based medicine. Uttarakhand Ayurved University has its 03 Campuses namely Rishikul Campus & Gurukul Campus at Haridwar (U.K) and Faculty of Ayurved, Main Campus at Dehradun. The Faculty of Biomedical Sciences at main campus, Dedradun is one of the main faculties being developed on priority basis and going to be one of the centers of excellence in Ayurvedic research.
- 1.2 In accordance with the letter of NCISM No- 1/1/2025-AACCC Dated 21-08-2025 and the Gazette of India dated 16-02-2022 pertaining to the Indian Medicine Central Council Amendment Regulations, 2022 for common counseling, a centralized counseling board has been constituted and assigned the task of conducting the UAUC UG- 2025-26 Uttarakhand Ayurved University Centralized online counseling for Campuses of the University and affiliated Private Ayurved, Unani, Homeopathy & Naturopathy Colleges of Uttarakhand State recognized by National Commission for Indian System of Medicine (NCISM), Central Council of Homeopathy (CCH), Ministry of AYUSH, GOVT. of India, for the academic session of 2025-26. The Counseling will be conducted on the basis of merit of NEET-2025 examination and eligibility criteria & other terms and conditions and as per direction received from Govt. of India & State Govt. and adopted by the counseling board.
- 1.3 Centralized counseling will be conducted for following quota of seats: -
- 1.3.1 B.A.M.S., B.H.M.S., B.U.M.S. & B.N.Y.S. Courses in State Government and Private Colleges Affiliated with Uttarakhand Ayurved University, recognized by NCISM, Central Council of Homeopathy, Ministry of AYUSH, Govt. of India
  - The registered eligible candidates who have qualified NEET (UG)-2025 will get admission against available State quota seats and All India quota seats in B.A.M.S. / B.H.M.S. / B.U.M.S. / B.N.Y.S. courses by centralized online counseling on merit cum choice basis.

## 2. GENERAL INSTRUCTIONS, TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

- 2.1 The applicants are required to fill the application form to register him/her and pay the required registration / counseling fee by ONLINE mode only. The counseling registration fee shall not be refunded under any circumstances.
- 2.2 The candidates have to complete the online application form in all respects and also to upload his/her photograph & signature (same as submitted in NEET-2025 application form) in the appropriate box. The candidates are further advised to re-check the entries/information given by him/her before submitting the same as there is no option for editing the entries after final submission of application form. After final submission of the form, the candidates are required to take the print of the submitted form (hard copy).

  Note- No any other mean of correspondences will be entertained, once submitted.
- 2.3 The candidates are advised to retain the copy of the form submitted to the University for their best interest for further reference and queries.

- **2.4** The candidates are advised to keep at least 05 copies of same photographs (same as submitted in NEET 2025 application form). The candidates will have to produce the same copy of photographs for entire admission process.
- 2.5 Depending upon the directions received from time to time by various regulatory bodies like NCISM, CCH, Government of India, State Government and Hon'ble Courts, the Schedule/availability of seats/Rules/ Terms & Conditions may be subjected to change. Such information will be notified on the university website <a href="www.uau.ac.in">www.uau.ac.in</a> only. Candidates must refer the website regularly for any update. No separate intimation will be sent to the candidates.
- **2.6** Only appearing in the UAUC-UG 2025-26 Uttarakhand Ayurved University counseling does not confer any right to secure a B.A.M.S. / B.H.M.S. / B.U.M.S. / B.N.Y.S. course seat. The selection and admission to B.A.M.S. / B.H.M.S. / B.U.M.S. / B.N.Y.S. course on a state quota and All India quota seats in University Campuses and Private Colleges affiliated to the University is subject to fulfilling all the eligibility criteria, state reservation policy, other terms & conditions etc. mentioned in the Information Brochure and/ or amendments made thereafter till the time of counseling.
- 2.7 In case the information provided by the candidate is found wrong in the application form, his/her application will be summarily rejected. If any candidate secures admission in the college/institute by providing wrong information in his/her application, detected later on in due course, his/her admission will be cancelled at the cost and risk of the candidate. Hence candidates are advised to fill the online application form very carefully and re-check before the final submission.
- **2.8** Candidate's eligibility is purely provisional and is subject to the fulfillment of eligibility criteria as prescribed in this Information Brochure, during subsequent verifications of his/her documents at counseling, admission or afterwards.
- **2.9** University/counseling board reserves the right to withdraw permission, if any, granted in advertently to any candidate who is not eligible to appear in the UAUC-UG- 2025-26 centralized counseling even though he got himself registered and paid the required fee.
- **2.10** Instructions, Terms & Conditions in the Information Brochure are liable to change based on decisions consciously taken by the UAUC-UG-2025-26 counseling Board, Ministry of AYUSH, Govt. of India and Uttarakhand Government from time to time. There is no equity or any rights that are /or deemed to be arising in favor of candidate.
- 2.11 The candidate must ensure before filling the application form that he/she fulfils the eligibility requirements for quota of seat he/she is applying for i.e., a state quota and All India quota seats in University Campuses and Private Colleges affiliated to the University. The registration fee once paid shall not be refunded in the event of rejection of the application. Only eligible candidates will be considered for counseling/admission.
- **2.12** The candidates are advised to give their complete mailing address, ID proof details and correct contact **telephone/mobile numbers and email** in the application form.
- 2.13 The records of Counseling shall be preserved only for a period of one year from the date of the counseling.

- **2.14** All the matters related to counseling, decision of UAUC-UG 2025-26 Counseling Board and Government of Uttarakhand as the case may be, shall be final and binding to all.
- **2.15** In case of any ambiguity in interpretation of any of the instructions / terms / rules / criteria the determination of eligibility / conduct of counseling / registration of candidate / information contained herein, the interpretation of the UAUC-UG-2025-26 Counseling Board as the case may be, will be final and binding.
- **2.16** Only those candidates who have accepted all the terms & conditions mentioned in the Information Brochure should apply.
- 2.17 For information or any other query regarding counseling the candidates can contact on
  - Technical Assistance telephone number- 7016125562
  - Through Email- support@studentink.zohodesk.in
  - University Helpline No-7456850078(10:00 am to 05:00 pm)
  - University Email.:- uaucounselling@gmail.com

# 3. ELIGIBILITY CRITERIA FOR UAUC-UG-2025-26 UTTARAKHAND AYURVED UNIVERSITY CENTRALISED COUNSELING

The counseling and admission shall be open to registered candidates only who will fulfill the following criteria:

- 3.1 Eligibility for B.A.M.S. / B.H.M.S. / B.U.M.S. / B.N.Y.S. Courses in Government & Affiliated Private AYUSH Colleges for State Quota of Seats.
- 3.1.1 Is an Indian citizen.
- 3.1.2 The eligibility criteria of age for UAUC-UG-2025-26 Uttarakhand Ayurved University Centralized Counseling will be as per the latest guidelines / order of NEET-2025 examination conducting body / Hon'ble courts / NCISM / CCH / Government of India and Government of Uttarakhand.

NOTE: Only NEET-2025 qualified candidates can apply for the admission through UAUC-UG 2025-26.

- 3.1.3 For BAMS (Bachelor of Ayurvedic Medicine & Surgery), BHMS (Bachelor of Homoeopathic Medicine & Surgery), BUMS (Bachelor of Unani Medicine & Surgery) & B.N.Y.S. (Bachelor of Naturopathy and Yogic Sciences): -
  - The candidate shall have passed 10+2 (or equivalent) with subjects of Physics, Chemistry, Biology or Biotechnology.

(Letter no. 1/1/2025-AACCC dated 21-08-2025)

3.1.4 The candidate must have fulfilled all the eligibility criteria mentioned in the UAUC-UG-2025-26 Information Brochure and qualified NEET (UG)-2025 examination that is "In order to be eligible for admission for a particular academic year it shall be necessary for UR/EWS candidate to obtain minimum of marks at 50<sup>th</sup> percentile in NEET for the said academic year. However, in respect of candidates belonging to Scheduled Castes, Scheduled Tribes, Other Backward Castes, the minimum marks shall be at 40<sup>th</sup> percentile. In respect of the candidates with bench marked disabilities specified under the Rights of persons with Disabilities Act, 2016 (49 of 2016), the minimum marks shall be at 45<sup>th</sup> percentile for UR/EWS PwD category candidates and 40<sup>th</sup> percentile for SC PwD / ST PwD / OBC PwD candidates. The percentile shall be determined on the basis of highest marks secured in the All-India Common Merit list in NEET- 2025"

3.1.5 Candidates who are Domicile / Permanent residents of Uttarakhand <u>and</u> have passed Intermediate (10+2) or equivalent examination from a recognized educational institution situated in the State of Uttarakhand. \*

OR

Candidates who are **not Domicile** / **Permanent residents** of Uttarakhand <u>but</u> have passed Intermediate (10+2) or equivalent examination from a recognized educational institution situated in the State of Uttarakhand shall also be eligible, but they will not be entitled for any type of reservation.

However, as mentioned in relevant regulations, the relaxation in qualifying criteria may be provided category-wise. \*

OR

Candidates who are Domicile / Permanent residents of Uttarakhand but have passed Intermediate (10+2) or equivalent examination from a recognized educational institution situated outside the State of Uttarakhand shall also be eligible. \*

The candidate claiming him/her as domicile/permanent resident of Uttarakhand has to produce the domicile/permanent resident certificate issued by the competent authority of the state of Uttarakhand

- 3.2 Eligibility for B.A.M.S. / B.H.M.S. / B.U.M.S. / B.N.Y.S. Courses in University Campuses (seats to be filled by AACCC) and affiliated private AYUSH Colleges against All India Quota (AIQ) seats in Private Colleges.
- 3.2.1 Is an Indian citizen.
- 3.2.2 The eligibility criteria of age for UAUC- UG 2025-26 Uttarakhand Ayurved University centralized counseling will be as per the latest guidelines /order of NEET -2025 examination conducting body/Hon'ble courts/ NCISM/CCH/Government of India and Government of Uttarakhand.
- 3.2.3 The candidate shall have passed 10+2 (or equivalent) with subjects of Physics, Chemistry, Biology or Biotechnology.

(Letter no. 1/1/2025-AACCC dated 21-08-2025)

3.2.4 The candidate must have fulfilled all the eligibility criteria mentioned in the UAUC-UG-2025-26 Information Brochure and qualified NEET-2025 examination that is "In order to be eligible for admission for a particular academic year it shall be necessary for UR/EWS candidate to obtain minimum of marks at 50<sup>th</sup> percentile in NEET for the said academic year. However, in respect of candidates belonging to Scheduled Castes, Scheduled Tribes, Other Backward Castes, the minimum marks shall be at 40<sup>th</sup> percentile. In respect of the candidates with bench marked disabilities specified under the Rights of persons with Disabilities Act, 2016 (49 of 2016), the minimum marks shall be at 45<sup>th</sup> percentile for UR/EWS-PwD category candidates and 40<sup>th</sup> percentile for SC-PwD / ST-PwD / OBC-PwD candidates. The percentile shall be determined on the basis of highest marks secured in the All-India Common Merit list in NEET-2025"

3.2.5 Reservation for allotment of AIQ-UG seats in Private ASU&H institutes – All AIQ-UG seats of Private ASU&H Institutes are open in nature (all category candidates are eligible). However, as mentioned in relevant regulations, the relaxation in qualifying criteria may be provided category-wise.

Note: For OBC-NCL candidates, Central OBC certificate is mandatory.

3.3 Counseling will be done on the basis of merit in NEET-2025 as per following percentile.

Category	Percentile in NEET-2025
UR	50 <sup>th</sup> percentile (144 marks and above)
EWS	50 <sup>th</sup> percentile (144 marks and above)
UR/EWS –PwD	45 <sup>th</sup> percentile (127 marks and above)
OBC	40 <sup>th</sup> percentile (113 marks and above)
SC	40 <sup>th</sup> percentile (113 marks and above)
ST	40 <sup>th</sup> percentile (113 marks and above)
SC/ST/OBC - PwD	40 <sup>th</sup> percentile (113 marks and above)

#### 3.4 Age Limit: -

3.4.1 No candidate will be admitted to BAMS, BUMS, BHMS and BNYS Degree courses unless he/she has attained the age of seventeen years on or before the 31<sup>st</sup> December of the year of his/her admission in the first year of the course. Further, there is no upper age limit for admission to ASU&H-UG courses.

NOTE: Candidates seeking admission in B.N.Y.S. course are hereby informed that counselling for BNYS course and rules & regulations for the eligibility for BNYS are subject to the permission from competent authority or state government.

#### 4. RESERVATION POLICIES

- 4.1 Reservation policy will be applicable college wise on all seats of state quota as per the prevailing rules of Government of Uttarakhand, applicable at the time of counseling. (Government order No. 124/xxx (2)/2020-53(01)/2001 dated 22 May 2020) NO RESERVATION applicable for All India Quota seats for Affiliated Private Colleges.
- **4.2** Regarding reservation, Government Orders issued from time to time, by the Government of Uttarakhand will be applicable for reservation and the certificate issued by the competent authority of Uttarakhand Government will only be valid.
- **4.3** Candidates who are domicile/permanent resident of Uttarakhand will be entitled for the benefit of any type of reservation, only if they produce the specific category certificate issued by the competent authority of the State of Uttarakhand.

#### 4.4 Vertical Reservation:

- 4.4.1 For State Quota Seats Vertical Reservation will be applicable in respective category of vertical reservation as per Annexure 01 of GO No. 124/xxx (2)/2020-53(01)/2001 dated 22 May 2020
- 4.4.2 OBC-NCL Candidates are advised to check his/her OBC-NCL certificate validity carefully, because the OBC certificate is valid for **three years** duration only. (The OBC-NCL certificate should be valid up to 25.11.2025 or last date of admission whichever is later) Claiming candidate for reservation with invalid OBC-NCL certificate will be summarily rejected for OBC-NCL quota during that particular round of counseling and he/she will be considered UR candidate. However, he/she can freshly re-apply as OBC-NCL candidate with valid document for next rounds of counseling.

Note: Candidates belonging to Creamy-layer of OBC are not entitled to reservation, such candidates are treated as belonging to General (GEN) i.e., Unreserved category. (Except prevailing creamy layer criteria as prescribed by the state government)

- 4.4.3 EWS-Candidate has to produce EWS certificate issued by competent authority of the Govt. The EWS certificate should be valid for the financial year 2025-26 (i.e. certificate should be issued on or after 01.04.2025). The Candidate producing invalid EWS certificate will be summarily rejected for EWS quota during that particular round of counseling and he/she will be considered as UR candidate. However, he/she can freshly re-apply as EWS candidate with valid document for next rounds of counseling.
- 4.4.4 Candidate who belongs to Scheduled Castes / Scheduled Tribes / Other Backward Classes / EWS of Uttarakhand has to produce caste certificate and Uttarakhand State domicile/permanent resident certificate issued by the competent authority of the State Government. The original certificate has to be produced at the time of admission. If a candidate fails to produce the original caste certificate and domicile/permanent resident certificate of Uttarakhand he/she will not be eligible for the benefit of reservation. The candidate shall be responsible for the same. In that case the candidate will be treated as Unreserved (UR) candidate only if he/she fulfills all other eligibility criteria to be considered as UR category candidate. In case of non- availability of reserve candidates in their respective categories, conversion of seats will be done as per Govt. of Uttarakhand order no. 1070/XXVIII/2017-150 II Cover dated 25th August, 2017
- **4.5** Horizontal Reservation (in each vertical category):
- 4.5.1 Horizontal Reservation (for Women, Ex-servicemen\*, PH/PwD, FF, Orphan) will be applicable in respective category of vertical reservation as per GO No. 124/xxx(2)/2020-53(01)/2001 dated 22/May/2020. (Candidates falling under these categories will have to produce valid certificates from the competent authorities.)
- 4.5.2 If a candidate is eligible for more than one subcategory reservation then seat allotment will be done in decreasing percentage of subcategories.
- 4.5.3 For 'Dependent of Ex-servicemen' candidates, the certificate issued by the competent authority for this purpose will be valid. (Army/Navy/Air force). (Candidates are advised to upload/produce the certificate in a prescribed format mention in **annexure -1**).

#### Note:

- Dependent of Ex-servicemen / Ex-servicemen of paramilitary forces are not eligible for this reservation
- Dependent Children of Ex-servicemen
  - **Sons** Upto the attainment of age 25 years or on ceasing to be dependent whichever is earlier or unemployed due to disabled life time.
  - Daughters Till married or unemployed due to disability lifetime.
- 4.5.4 Reservation for persons with disabilities (PwD/PH) Candidates For candidate with disabilities (PwD/PH) and who are domicile of Uttarakhand, 4% seats of the annual sanctioned state quota (college wise) shall be reserved (horizontal reservation). Candidates must have to produce the valid certificate from competent authorities.
- 4.5.5 In case eligible differently abled candidates are not available in its category then the vacant seat shall be filled by UR-PH candidate in the order of merit as per the provision given in **Government of Uttarakhand order no 1070/XXVIII/2017-150 II Cover dated 25**th **August, 2017.**

- 4.5.6 **Reservation policy for Wards of Kashmiri Migrants (WKM)** Online Applications are invited from the wards of Kashmiri Migrant Candidates, who have qualified in NEET-2025, for admission to 01 reserved seat in each Government AYUSH College of Uttarakhand. The interested candidate should upload the following self-attested certificates/documents **apart** from the documents mentioned in Para 7.4.11 of this Information Brochure:
  - a) Certificate of registration as Kashmiri Migrant issued by the Relief Commissioner, Jammu or competent authority of Uttarakhand to establish the status of the applicant as registered migrant.
  - b) Proof of <u>current residence</u> (such as Ration Card/Photo Identity Card issued by the election Commissioner /driving license/ Aadhar card/ passport etc.)
    - The above two documents must be uploaded for verification at the time of registration.

#### Note: -

- 1. Domicile of Uttarakhand is not mandatory in order to get the benefit of WKM reserved seats.
- 2. In case, eligible WKM candidates are not available then the vacant seats will be filled by general category candidates in third/mop-up round of counseling.
- 3. The Kashmiri Migrant candidates, who otherwise don't fulfill the eligibility criteria for State Quota Seat, will only be eligible for State Quota Seats reserved for Wards of Kashmiri Migrant and All India quota seats.
- 4. The admission shall be made on the basis of merit in the NEET (UG)-2025 qualifying examination.
- 4.5.7 **Reservation for Orphan Candidates** The reservation for orphan will be applicable only for orphans residing in voluntary/ State orphanages operating in the State of Uttarakhand. **Candidates must have to produce the valid certificate from competent authorities.**

#### 4.5.8 Conversion Policy

- 4.5.8.1 If category/subcategory seats of "State Quota" remain vacant due to non-availability of eligible candidates of their respective categories/subcategories, then these vacant seats will be converted in the Round 3<sup>rd</sup>/Mop-up round of counseling as per the prevailing rules of Govt. of Uttarakhand applicable at the time of counseling.
- 4.5.8.2 In case the eligible candidates are not available in the subcategory of any category, the vacant seats of that sub-category shall be filled-up by the Open candidate of that particular category except PH category (see point 4.5.5) in III<sup>rd</sup>/Mop-up round of counseling.
- 4.5.8.3 Even after that, if the eligible candidates are not available to the extent of reservation in any category, the vacant seats of that category shall be filled-up by making the vacant seat available to other categories in the III<sup>rd</sup> / mop-up round of counseling as per the provision given in Government of Uttarakhand order no 1070/XXVIII/2017-150 II Cover dated 25<sup>th</sup> August, 2017 as under:

Scheduled Tribe (ST) Open=> Scheduled Cast (SC) Open=>Other Backward Classes (OBC) Open=> Open / Unreserved category

Note- if the eligible EWS candidate is not available, the vacant seats shall be filled up by UR Candidate.

4.5.8.4 In case of non-availability of candidate in All India quota, the seat will be filled by the State quota candidate in the III<sup>rd</sup>/Mop-up round of counseling. (After approval from the counseling board).

4.5.8.5 If any reserved quota seat falls vacant before the commencement of III<sup>rd</sup> / Mop-up round, and included in the Mop-up round counseling, the said seat will be filled by candidates of that particular category/sub-category only. In case of non-availability of the candidates of that particular category/sub-category in III<sup>rd</sup> / Mop-up round counseling, the said seats will be converted as per Government policy mentioned in 4.5.8.2 and 4.5.8.3.

4.5.8.6 The seats (if any) not filled-up in the Central Counseling (AYUSH Admission Central Counseling Committee – AACCC) 2025, will be transferred in UAUC U.G. 2025-26 counseling at any stage of the UAUC U.G. 2025-26 counseling, as per norms.

#### 5.COUNSELLING REGISTRATION FEE

- 5.1 Online counseling one time registration Fee is Rs- 2,000/- for round 1 and round 2 for all categories, but registration fee for fresh registration (for fresh candidate) in Round 2 is Rs. 2000/-. To Participate in  $\mathrm{III}^{\mathrm{rd}}/\mathrm{Mop}$ -up Round registration of Rs-2000/- is required for all candidates of all categories.
- **5.2** Counseling registration fee shall neither be refunded nor carried forwarded, if the application for UAUC-UG-2025-26 Centralized counseling is rejected/candidature is found to be ineligible. Hence candidates are advised to read the eligibility criteria carefully before applying. Only eligible candidates will be considered for counseling/admission.
- 5.3 For all the rounds of Counseling, registration fee as described above will have to be paid online through Net Banking, Credit or Debit card only. No cheque or draft will be accepted.

#### **6.DETAIL OF SEATS:**

6.1 Tentative details of seats in AYUSH Colleges of Uttarakhand state: -

S.No.	COLLEGE NAME	Govt./Private	COURSE	TOTAL SEATS
				(as Per Seats Matrix)
01	RISHIKUL CAMPUS, (HARIDWAR). U.A.U.	Govt.	BAMS	75 (15% seats for AACCC)
02	GURUKUL CAMPUS, (HARIDWAR). U.A.U.	Govt.	BAMS	51 (15% seats for AACCC)
03	FACULTY OF AYURVED, MAIN CAMPUS, U.A.U. HARRAWALA, DEHRADUN	Govt.	BAMS	43 (15% seats for AACCC)
04	UTTARANCHAL AYURVEDIC COLLEGE AND	Private	BAMS	100
	HOSPITAL, RAJPUR DEHRADUN		BNYS	60
05	HIMALAYIYA AYURVEDIC MEDICAL COLLEGE & HOSPITAL, JEEVANWALA, DOIWALA, DEHRADUN	Private	BAMS	60
06	PATANJALI BHARTIYA AYURVIGYAN EVAM ANUSANDHAN SANSTHAN, HARIDWAR.	Private	BAMS	100
07	QUADRA INSTITUTE OF AYURVEDA, ROORKEE, HARIDWAR.	Private	BAMS	60
08	MOTHERHOOD AYURVEDA MEDICAL COLLEGE, ROORKEE, HARIDWAR	Private	BAMS	100
09	SHIVALIK INSTITUTE OF AYURVEDA& RESEARCH, NEAR-BANSIWALA BRIDGE, JHANJRA CHAKRATA ROAD, D.DUN	Private	BAMS	60
10	DOON INSTITUTE OF AYURVEDA FACULTY, MEDICAL SCIENCES, SHANKARPUR, SHAHASPUR D.DUN.	Private	BAMS	60
11	SMT. MANJARI DEVI AYURVEDIC MEDICAL COLLEGE AND HOSPITAL, HITANU, DHANARI, UTTARKASHI.	Private	BAMS	60
12	DEV BHOOMI MEDICAL COLLEGE OF AYURVEDA & HOSPITAL NAUGAON MANDUWALA, D.DUN	Private	BAMS	60

13	HARIDWAR AYURVEDIC COLLEGE OF RESEARCH CENTRE, MUSTAFABAD, LAKSAR ROAD, HARIDWAR.	Private	BAMS	51
14	CHANDOLA HOMEOPATHIC MEDICAL COLLEGE, RUDRAPUR, U.S. NAGAR	Private	BHMS	50
15	UTTARAKHAND UNANI MEDICAL COLLEGE & HOSPITAL MUSTAFABAD (PADARTHA), HARIDWAR.	Private	BUMS	42
16	COER MEDICAL COLLEGE OF AYURVEDA AND HOSPITAL, ROORKEE	Private	BAMS	60
17	AROMA AYURVEDIC MEDICAL COLLEGE AND HOSPITAL, DAULATPUR, HARIDWAR, UK	Private	BAMS	60
18	KAYA AYURVEDIC COLLEGE, SURYA GAON, PATTI CHOPRA, BHUJYA GHAT, KICHHA, NANITAL, UK	Private	BAMS	60
19	UTTARANCHAL MEDICAL COLLEGE OF AYURVEDA AND RESEARCH, ARCADIA GRANT, PO- CHANDARWARI, PREM NAGAR, DEHRADUN	Private	BAMS	100
20	UTTARANCHAL AYURVEDIC COLLEGE AND HOSPITAL, RAJPUR, DEHRADUN	Private	BNYS	60
21	DIVINE COLLEGE OF NATUROPATHY AND YOGIC SCIENCE, SHAYAMPUR, HARIDWAR	Private	BNYS	60

NOTE - Only the institution permitted by NCISM / AYUSH Ministry, Govt. of India has been allowed to participate in the Counseling for a particular round. The seat distribution of the colleges will be subjected to the permission granted.

- **6.2** Total Number of Seats may increase or decrease as per the Recognition/ permission by Govt. of UK/ NCISM/ CCH/AYUSH Ministry, Govt. of India at the time of Seat allotment of a particular round.
- **6.3** Vacancy of seats will be displayed on the website <u>www.uau.ac.in</u> before the commencement of each round.

#### 7. COUNSELLING PROCEDURE

- 7.1 All NEET (UG)-2025 qualified eligible candidates interested to participate in counseling against UG State/All India quota seats are required to register themselves for counseling (see 5.1). Candidates who fail to register in 1<sup>st</sup> round of counseling can participate in 2<sup>nd</sup> and 3<sup>rd</sup>/Mop-Up round of counseling after registration and payment of required fee.
- 7.2 Only registered candidates will be allowed for that particular round of counseling.
- 7.3 The candidate is compulsorily required to furnish NEET 2025 examination Roll Number, NEET application number, valid mobile number and other required information in order to register for counseling.

## 7.4 The general instructions for eligible candidates:

- 7.4.1 Registration facility is available for each round of counseling as notified in counseling schedule. To become eligible to participate in any particular round of counseling, candidate has to register / upgrade themselves and fill their choices for that particular round of counseling. (Note: Spot registration will not be entertained in any case)
- 7.4.2 If a candidate has not registered/upgraded himself for a particular round of counseling, he/she will not be considered for seat allotment for that particular round of counseling.
- 7.4.3 If candidate has been allotted a seat in 1<sup>st</sup> Round and if candidate does not report/join the allotted college, he will be eligible to participate in second round but he/she will not be able to claim his/her allotted seat of the previous round.
- 7.4.4 If a candidate has been admitted on a seat in 2<sup>nd</sup> round of counseling and in case the candidate wants to resign/surrender the seat he/she has to compulsorily apply through respective college Principal to the Registrar,

- UAU, Dehradun and has to report to the counselling board in-person before the registration of 3<sup>rd</sup> Round/ Mopup round. Further He/she will not claim for the seat resigned/surrendered.
- 7.4.5 Candidates who have been allotted seat in round I of counseling can opt for seat up gradation in round II of counseling only.
- 7.4.6 If a candidate has upgraded in the round II the seat allotted in round I gets automatically cancelled and allotted to next eligible candidate in merit. Candidates are advised to select choices carefully.
- 7.4.7 Candidates have to fill new/fresh choices in each round of counseling to become eligible for seat allotment in that particular round.
- 7.4.8 Candidate can give as many choices as he/she wishes during online choice filling. However, choices should be in order of candidate's preference & eligibility.
- 7.4.9 Candidates are advised to select the choices very carefully. If candidate is not interested in any specific Quota/College/Course, it is advised not to opt for that specific Quota/College/Course seat in choice filling process as allotment once done will not be altered. University / Counseling Board will not be responsible for any mistake done at the part of the candidate.
- 7.4.10 Candidate has to fill up the fresh choices/quota for each subsequent rounds of counseling separately irrespective of previous choices/quota.
- 7.4.11 Candidates are required to produce following self-attested documents at the time of admission in respective colleges along with the original documents for verification.
  - ✓ Colored passport size photographs (five)
  - ✓ High School (10<sup>th</sup>) Certificate for Age proof.
  - ✓ Intermediate (10+2) Certificate.
  - ✓ Intermediate (10+2) Marksheet.
  - ✓ NEET 2025 Admit Card
  - ✓ NEET 2025 Result/Rank letter
  - ✓ Certificate of Reserve category, if applicable (SC, ST, OBC-NCL, EWS)
  - ✓ Certificate of Sub Category, if applicable. (for Domicile/Permanent resident of Uttarakhand only)

- ✓ Dependent of Ex-servicemen / Ex-servicemen / Dependent of FF/PwD(PH) category certificate issued by competent authority of Uttarakhand state only, if applicable.
- ✓ Certificates required for Ward of Kashmiri Migrants, if applicable.
- ✓ Domicile Certificate (For Uttarakhand domicile candidate only)
- ✓ Valid ID proof (preferably Aadhar Card/Passport/Driving License etc.)
- ✓ Character Certificate (by last institute attended).
- ✓ Migration Certificate (original)
- ✓ Leaving certificate or Transfer certificate (original)
- ✓ Affidavit of Gap (if applicable)
- ✓ Allotment letter of UAUC U.G. 2025-26
- ✓ Other documents as per the requirement of the concerned college (e.g. Affidavit of Anti-Ragging, Medical Fitness Certificate etc.)
- ✓ Other supporting document as desired by the candidate.

# 7.5 UAUC UG-2025-26 Uttarakhand Ayurved University Centralized counseling will be carried out in the following rounds.

#### **7.5.1 First Round: -**

- Candidates have to online register (including payment of required registration) themselves and fill choices as per their preference & eligibility to become eligible for first round of counseling.
- Candidates must keep a print copy of the online choice filled form for future reference.
- The College allotment letter will be available online along with necessary instructions in the University website only. The printout of this allotment letter will have to be produced by the candidate at the time of admission to the college allotted. No extension of last date of admission will be permitted.
- Candidates who are allotted the seats will have to secure admission in the concerned AYUSH colleges on or before the last date of admission of that particular round otherwise admission stands cancelled automatically.
- Candidates allotted/admitted to the institution/college in the first round of counseling can exercise option to participate in second round of counseling for up gradation. Round 1 candidate can upgrade from their allotted seat, if he/she is not satisfied. He/she can still participate in Round 2.
- Candidate can generate his/her allotment letter only after deposition of security fee (Rs. 15000 for U.G) which would be refundable after last round of counseling, once the candidate has taken admission.
- The security fee (Rs.15000) will be forfeited if a candidate does not join the allotted seat of Round-1 or surrender/withdraw the seat allotted in Round-1. Further, the security fee will also be forfeited if the allotted seat of Round-1 is cancelled due to any unforeseen reason from the candidate's end. For example, the candidate gives wrong information at the time of registration on the basis of which a seat may be allotted and later cancelled by the Admission Authorities at the time of reporting or fails to produce the required documents at the time of admission. However, if the admitted candidate opts for upgradation in Round 2, the same Security fee will carry forwarded.
- Candidates who have taken admission against the allotted seats will be permitted for course/college/quota up-gradation up to second round of counseling only.
- The registered candidate who does not get allotment to any College may participate in the next round of counseling.

#### 7.5.2 Second Round: -

• The following group of candidates are eligible for 2nd Round of allotment: -

Group-I : Registered candidates who did not get any seat allotment in the 1st round.

Group-II: Candidates who have reported/joined at allotted institute during 1st round of allotment and wants to participate for second roundup-gradation.

Group-III: Candidates who have been allotted a seat but not joined.

Group-IV: Candidates who are registering for the first time.

- New/Fresh Candidates have to online register (including payment of required registration) themselves
  and fill choices as per their preference & eligibility to become eligible for second round of counseling.
  However already registered Candidates & candidates opting for up gradation have to opt for
  upgradation without payment of registration fee.
- Candidates who have admitted against round I or II allotted seat and want to Resign/Surrender the Seat he/she has apply through college principal to Registrar, UAU, Dehradun before Mop-Up Round of the Counseling. Candidate will not claim for the seat once resigned/surrendered.
- Candidates who are allotted the seats will have to secure admission in the concerned AYUSH
  College on or before the last date of admission of that particular round otherwise admission stands
  cancelled automatically.
- Candidate can generate his/her allotment letter only after deposition of security fee (Rs. 15000 for U.G) which would be refundable after last round of counseling, once the candidate has taken admission.
- The security fee will be forfeited if a candidate does not join the allotted seat of Round-2 or surrender/withdraw the seat allotted in Round-2. Further, the security fee will also be forfeited if the allotted seat of Round-2 is cancelled due to any unforeseen reason from the candidate's end. For example, the candidate gives wrong information at the time of registration on the basis of

which a seat may be allotted and later cancelled by the Admission Authorities at the time of reporting or fails to produce the required documents at the time of admission.

#### 7.5.3 III<sup>rd</sup>/ Mop Up Round: -

- The following categories of candidates are eligible for III<sup>rd</sup>/ Mop-up Round:
  - o Candidates who are registering for the first time.
  - o Candidates who have registered but not allotted seat in Round I & Round II.
  - o All candidates except those who have taken admission in Round I or Round II.
  - o Candidates who have resigned/surrendered his/her allotted seats after admission in a college/campus and had applied for the same through college principal to Registrar, UAU.
- Candidates have to online register themselves to become eligible to III<sup>rd</sup> / Mop -UP Round Counseling.
- Eligible candidates will have to present him/her in front of counseling board at the designated counseling venue as per schedule date and time, for seat allotment along with required original document. No TA or any other allowances will be given to him/her.
- Candidate can generate his/her allotment letter only after deposition of security fee (Rs. 15000 for U.G) which would be refundable after last round of counseling, once the candidate has taken admission.
- Round-1/Round-2 admitted candidates can withdraw/surrender their admitted seat with forfeiture of security fee before the commencement of registration of III<sup>rd</sup> / Mop-up round. After the said period, candidates will not be allowed to withdraw/surrender their admitted seat of Round-2. If they do so, they will be ineligible for any further AYUSH counseling.
- The security fee will be forfeited if a candidate does not join the allotted seat of III<sup>rd</sup> / Mop-up round or surrender/withdraw the seat allotted in Mop-up round. Further, the security fee will also be forfeited if the allotted seat of III<sup>rd</sup> / Mop-up round is cancelled due to any unforeseen reason from the candidate's end. For example, the candidate gives wrong information at the time of registration on the basis of which a seat may be allotted and later cancelled by the Admission Authorities at the time of reporting or fails to produce the required documents at the time of admission.

NOTE: University can conduct stray vacancy round if any seats remain vacant even after the III<sup>rd</sup>/ mopup round. (The admissions are subjected to the final decision of Counseling Board).

Round specific additional instructions will be displayed separately on University website Candidates are advised to visit the University website regularly for updates regarding counseling. No personal intimation will be sent.

NOTE: While filling the online counselling form, candidates are advised to fill the details and upload relevant documents correctly and carefully, as once the form is submitted, it will be considered as final and no change will be entertained thereafter for that particular round.

#### 8. ADMISSION PROCEDURE

- **8.1** Candidates should report personally to the allotted college office for deposition of fee to complete admission process.
- **8.2** The candidate should report personally to the allotted college along with the mentioned in point 7.4.11 for completion of further admission process with in the specified period
- **8.3** After completing the above-mentioned formalities/procedure, the admission process will only be completed once the candidate gets the admission letter issued by the concerned college within the specified time period mentioned in the allotment letter. Hence, the candidates are required to make necessary

arrangement from his/her side well in time to complete the whole admission process within the specified time period of that particular round.

#### 9. FEE & FEE REFUND POLICY

- 9.1 The fees structure of State Quota and All India Quota will be same.
- 9.2 Fees details about University Campuses will be notified separately on the University website.
- 9.3 FOR UNIVERSITY CAMPUS COLLEGES (MAIN CAMPUS, RISHIKUL CAMPUS AND GURUKUL CAMPUS)
- 9.3.1 If a candidate wants to quit the college allotted to him in the First round he/ she has to inform the Registrar, Uttarakhand Ayurved University through the Principal of the concerned college before **the date of registration of second round** that he/she is vacating the seat allotted to him/her in the counseling & then only he/she will be entitled to get refund of the fees deposited by him/her after deduction of Rs. 5000/- only (as administrative charges). In addition, charges for the services availed (e.g. Hostel, mess etc) by the candidate will also be deducted from the fees deposited, on actual consumption/rational basis, by the college administration
- 9.3.2 If a candidate wants to quit the college allotted to him/her in the Second round he/she has to inform the Registrar, Uttarakhand Ayurved University through the Principal of the concerned college **before** the date of registration of Mop-Up Round / Last Counseling (Stray Vacancy Round) that he/she is vacating the seat allotted to him/her in the counseling & then only he/she will be entitled to get refund of the fees deposited by him/her after deduction of Rs. 5000/- only (as administrative charges). In addition, charges for the services availed (e.g. Hostel, mess etc.) by the candidate will also be deducted from the fees deposited, on actual consumption/rational basis, by the college administration
- 9.3.3 If Candidate leaves the College allotted to him after the last round of counseling, fees will be refunded back to him with following Terms & Condition:- (For govt. Campuses Only)
  - If the Candidate inform through Campus Director/Principal to the Registrar, UAU, Dehradun within 01 to 07 days after taking admission Rs. 25000/- will be deducted except security money.
  - If the Candidate inform through Campus Director/Principal to the Registrar, UAU, Dehradun within 08 to 15 days after taking admission 50% of total fees deposited will be deducted except security money.
  - If the Candidate inform through Campus Director/Principal to the Registrar, UAU, Dehradun within 16 to 30 days after taking admission 75% of total fees deposited will be deducted except security money.
  - If the Candidate inform through Campus Director/Principal to the Registrar, UAU, Dehradun after 30 days after taking admission the total fees deposited by the candidate will be forfeited except security money.
  - After one Month the fees deposited by the candidate (except security Money) will be forfeited if the candidate surrenders the seat before the completion of the first prof. of that batch.

#### For Private Colleges

• Fees details will be uploaded separately on university website.

## 10. JURISDICTION

**10.1** Any dispute concerning "UAUC-UG-2025-26 Uttarakhand Ayurved University Centralized Counseling" would be subject to exclusive jurisdiction of the competent Hon'ble courts within the territorial jurisdiction of Uttarakhand only.

## 11. DISCLAIMER

11.1 In case of incorrect information detected at any stage of the selection process, the candidate will automatically disqualify from the selection process and he/she will not be allowed to appear for UAUC UG counseling in future in the Uttarakhand Ayurved University, Dehradun. If such instances go undetected during the current selection process but are detected in subsequent years or later on; such disqualification will take place with retrospective effect and the Principal/Dean/Director of the concerned college/institute shall have the authority to cancel the admission of the candidate and to proceed for legal action against him/her and all the information/documents furnished by the candidate will be scrutinized/verified by competent authorities further.

11.2 The statement made in information brochure and all information contained herein is believed to be correct at the time of publication/uploading in the website. However, the Uttarakhand Ayurved University reserves the right to make any change without notice, changes and additions to the regulations, conditions governing the admission procedure, conduct of students, requirements for degree, fees and any other information, or statements contained in this information bulletin at any time. Uttarakhand Ayurved University will not be responsible for hardship or expense incurred by the candidates or any other person or persons for such changes, additions, omissions or errors, no matter how they are caused.

## **ANNEXURE - 1**

# उत्तराखण्ड के भूतपूर्व सैनिको (थल सेना, वायु सेना, जल सेना) के आश्रितो के लिए यू०जी० २०२५ (बी०ए०एम०एस०/ बी०एच०एम०एस०/बी०यू०एम०एस०/बी०एन०वाय०एस०)/पी०जी० २०२५ (एम०डी०/एम०एस०(आयु०)) हेतु प्रमाण—पत्र का प्रारूप

प्रमाणित किया जाता है कि श्री ने	निवासी भारतीय जल/थल/	 ⁄ वार
सेना की सिक्वया सेवा में थे तथा सेवा नि भारतीयसेवा युनिट).	वृत्त से पहले श्री	
प्रमाणित किया जाता है कि श्री / कुमारी . (भूतपूर्व सैनिक) के आश्रित है।	पुत्र / पुत्री श्री	
अभ्यर्थी का नाम अभ्यर्थी का पूर्ण हस्ताक्षर निवासी दिनांक अनकामंक	सक्ष्म अधिकारी द्वारा प्रमाणित फोटो	
अनुकामंक जन्मतिथिविवाहित है अथवा नही		
	सक्षम अधिकारी के हस्ताक्षर सक्षम अधिकारी का नाम सक्षम अधिकारी का पद	

सील